
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 19, 2017 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jan  9 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan  9 7:00 p.m. Organizational Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan  9 
Immediately 

following 
Finance Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan  9 
Immediately 

following. 
Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 16 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 23 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 23 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. MINUTES 
December 12, 2017 – Public Work Session 

December 12, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2017 – November 30, 2017 
 

 Fuel Bids – The Business Office recommends awarding bids for the 
purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for calendar year 2018. 
 

 Refuse Bids – The Business Office recommends awarding bids for refuse 

removal for 2018 – 2020. 
 

 2017 Rainy Day Fund Transfer Resolution – The Business Office 

recommends adoption of the 2017 Rainy Day Fund Transfer Resolution. 
 

 Monthly Insurance Update 



BOARD AGENDA December 19, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 2018–2019 School Calendar – The administration presents the 2018-2019 
School Calendar for initial consideration. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 
grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

G. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 12, 2017 
 

North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence Street, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent: Karen S. Carter  
:   
ECS Personnel Present Tony England Doug Thorne 
 Tony Gianesi Cheryl Waggoner 
 Rob Haworth  
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard information regarding the Community Connections 
presentations scheduled for December 18th and the State of the Schools Address 
for scheduled for January 22nd.   
 
The Board also discussed the status of crossing guard meetings, 21st Century 
Community Learning Centers Program rants, and agenda items for the regular 
Board meeting. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:25 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

December 12, 2017 

 
North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence Street, Elkhart – at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 

  Jeri E. Stahr 

   

Absent: Karen S. Carter  

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by North Side 
students Hector Rico and David Burnham. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Mrs. Daiber recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives from 
both high schools introduced themselves:  Tianna Roundtree, a junior 

from Memorial High School (MHS) and Katie Buckley, a senior from 
Central High School (CHS).  Ms. Roundtree reported the following music 
department events:  hosted two well-attended Madrigal dinners last 

weekend; intermediate band and orchestras will perform Wednesday; 
choirs will perform on Thursday; advanced band, choir, and orchestra 
will present their Happy Holidays concert on Sunday.  Admission for the 

Wednesday and Sunday events are by donation of food items to be 
delivered to Church Community Services’ food bank.  She also reported 
on the winter sports.  Katie Buckley reported the following: ECA and 

ISTEP testing is finishing up; all five winter sports are off to winning 
seasons; the Blazer Kindness Café was featured on a local news 
channel; CHAMPS have adopted a family for Christmas; choirs and 

orchestras performed last week; and auditions were recently held for the 
upcoming musical. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives  

Jeff Komins, energy education specialist/elementary activities, reported 
on the building audit performed at 4:05 a.m. on Tuesday, December 12th 
at North Side Middle School.  Mr. Komins reported 80% of the 59 areas 

visited were found to be in compliance with our energy initiative and 
received “Thanks for Saving Energy” stickers.  Mr. Komins, thanked 
principal, Sara Jackowiak, and her staff for their efforts in lowering the 

utility costs.  The district’s cost avoidance for the year is still on track to 
break last year’s record of $1.2 million. 

Building Energy 
Report 



2 
 

Sara Jackowiak, principal at North Side, gave a presentation on the 
following areas: academics, art, athletics, and citizenship. Mrs. 

Jackowiak reported many teachers are working very hard to integrate 
technology into their instructional routine and decided this would be a 
good opportunity as an administrator to model using technology and 

collaboration to convey a message.  With the help of a couple staff 
members, a short video highlighting various aspects of the culture and 
student life at North Side was created - focusing mainly on academics, 

with an emphasis on offering students a multitude of opportunities to 
explore their interest and develop their strengths.  Academic Highlights 
include: 17 teachers have devices in their classrooms for student use; 

creating a balance between direct instruction and learning through the 
use of technology; an increase in student collaboration in classrooms; 
more opportunities for students to make connections between their 

learning and real world application through 8th grade manufacturing day 
and 7th grade Reaching Higher students visiting the Career Center.  
North Side had a 97% passing rate on the ISTEP+ Biology test last 

spring.  In the area of the Arts, offerings include not only the traditional 
band, orchestra and choir courses but we also offer Jazz Band, Music 
Theory and Jazz Choir; an Advanced Art class for 8th graders 

introducing graphic design; and Drama Club presenting two productions 
each year. 151 students participated in athletics during the first 

semester.  For Citizenship:  banners created by each Advisory class 
creating a sense of community and belonging for all students; 
implementation of the PRIDE initiative throughout the building; students 

are earning community service hours towards their PRIDE 8th Grade 
Work Ethic Certificate and starting with this next report card, students 
will also be given PRIDE grades by each of their teachers.   Mrs. 

Jackowiak invited the Board to attend the end of year Husky Big 3 
assembly. 
 

Building Report 
– North Side 

Middle School 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
November 28, 2017 – Public Work Session 
November 28, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$3,528,601.61 as shown on the December 12, 2017, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1718-69) 
 

Payment of 
Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): volleyball training 
equipment valued at $500 from John Himschoot to Memorial High 
School’s athletic department; 17 copies of the book Finders Keepers? 

from Mr. & Mrs. Gyan Joshi for distribution to each of the elementary 
and middle schools’ libraries; $2,000 from Goshen College to be used to 
engage staff, students, and community in cultural experiences; $500 

from Frank and Tonja Lucchese for Osolo’s Angel Tree Program; and 
Jason Richard of A+ Plumbing, Heating & Cooling of Bremen generously 
donated his services and the use of his equipment to install a waterline 

from the house to the barn at Agriculture Community Center for 

Gift Acceptance 



3 
 

Environmental Learning Lab (ACCELL).  Mid-City Supply also donated all 
the supplies for the project.  These two donations are valued at 

$4,000.00. 
 
By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 

of Port Phone wireless headphones for Central’s football program in the 
amount of $4,862.00. 
 

Extra Curricular 

Purchase 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1718-70) 
 

Fundraisers 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of the following Board policies regarding 
compensation: 

3422.01S - Food Service Employees’ Compensation Plan 

3422.02S - Mechanics’ Compensation Plan  
3422.03S - Bus Drivers’ Compensation Plan  
3422.04S - Bus Helpers’ Compensation Plan  

3422.05S - Support Staff Salary Schedule 
3422.06S - Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan 

3422.07S - Executive Assistants’ Salary Schedule 
3422.09S - Technical Assistants’ Compensation Plan 
3422.11S - Social Workers’ Compensation Plan 

3422.12S – Employees in Miscellaneous Positions 
Compensation Plan 

3422.13S - Therapists’ Compensation Plan  

3422.14S - Employees in Technology Services Positions 
Compensation Plan 

 

Board Policies - 

Compensation 
 

By unanimous action, Board member Doug Weaver abstained, the Board 
approved proposed revisions and waived second reading of Board Policy 
3422.08S – Paraprofessionals’ Compensation Plan.  

 

Board Policy 
3422.08S 

By unanimous action, Board member Glenn Duncan abstained, the 
Board approved proposed revisions and waived second reading of Board 

Policy 3422.10S - Registered Nurses’ Compensation Plan.  
 

Board Policy 
3422.10S 

By unanimous action, Board member Rodney Dale abstained, the Board 
approved the proposed Agreement with the American Federation of 
State, County, and Municipal Employees related to compensation.  Doug 

Thorne, district counsel/chief of staff, reported this is the final year for 
the current Agreement and a new one will be negotiated next Fall.  
(Codified File 1718-71) 

 

Custodial 
Agreement 



4 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of the 
following grants:  ISDA Livestock Promotion Grant to Indiana 

Department of Agriculture in the amount of $4,195.50 from ACCELL; 
and 21st Century Community Learning Center Grant to Indiana 
Department of Education in the amount of $1,125,000 over four years 

on behalf of Mary Daly, Pinewood and West Side for after school 
programming. (Codified File 1718-72) 
 

Grant 
Approvals 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the December 12, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1718-

73) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 

Report 

Employment of the following three (3) certified staff members for 

the 2017-2018 school year, effective on dates indicated:  
Jennifer Allen - special education at Beardsley, 12/4/17 
Mackenzie Bontrager - grade 1 at Beardsley, 1/8/18 

Barbara Starr - science at Pierre Moran, 12/4/17 
 

Certified 

Employment 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members, 

effective on the dates indicated: 
Rhonda Byler - grade 3 at Monger, 12/21/17 
Elizabeth Fawcett - grade 6 at Pinewood, 12/4/17 

 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Employment of the following nine (9) classified employees who 
have successfully completed their probationary period on dates 

indicated: 
 
Kristi Folger - paraprofessional at Memorial, 11/28/17 

Karla Gapinski - food service at Feeser, 11/27/17 
Blanca Gonzales Morales - paraprofessional at Riverview, 

12/1/17 

Johanna Montas-Arias - secretary at ESC, 12/6/17 
Carol Nusbaum - paraprofessional at Riverview, 11/30/17 
Casey Ruble - bus driver at Transportation, 11/27/17 

Mary Szekendi - paraprofessional at Osolo, 11/27/17 
Jennifer Weingart - senior reporter & assignment editor at 

WVPE, 11/27/17 

Tamar Wilson - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 12/4/17 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees effective 
on the dates indicated: 

Ronald Barr Sr. - custodian at Hawthorne, 12/1/17 

Audriana Coleman - secretary at Memorial, 12/15/17 
Shelly Piggie - food service at Hawthorne, 1/1/18 
 

Classified 
Resignation 
 

  



5 
 

An audience member spoke in regard to the cost and availability of 
geometry text books at the middle schools. 

 

From the 
Audience 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:45 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



  

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

DATE: 11/10/2017  

 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth Board of School Trustees  

 

FROM: Cyndy Keeling,  ACCELL 

 

RE:  Donation Approval  

 

Mr. Bullard graciously donated 80 pumpkins to the 2nd students of Woodland Elementary as 

part of the Farm to school project.  Students planted pumpkins at ACCELL during the spring as 

1st grade students in anticipation to harvest in the fall; however, due to circumstances the 

pumpkins were not available for the students.  Mr. Bullard, owner of Bullard’s Farm Market, 

member of the Ag Advisory Board, stepped in and graciously donated pumpkins to those 

students.  These pumpkins were locally grown and harvested and were a key element in the 

completion of the farm to school process. Mr. Bullard’s participation directly impacted our 

students and allowed them to see the development of locally raised produce and what their 

pumpkins would have been upon maturity.  We are grateful for Mr. Bullard’s willingness to 

participate in the farm to school project.   This donation is valued at $400.00  

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and than an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to:  

 

Bullard Farm Market 

Mr. Kevin Bullard 

5220 Middlebury St 

Elkhart, IN 46516 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 To:  Board of School Trustees 

  

 From: Dr. Rob Haworth 

 

 Date: December 19, 2017 

 

Subject:  Gift Acceptance 

  

Scott Welch has donated $250,000.00 to Elkhart Community Schools to be used to 

purchase a drop down score board for North Side Gym.  
 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation 
and an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 

 Mr. Scott Welch 
 Welch Packaging 

 1020 Herman St 
Elkhart IN  46516 

 

  

 
      

 
   
 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  December 11, 2017 

 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the girls/boys track team.  

This donation will go towards the purchase of team sweats, team shirts, shoes, equipment, and other 

miscellaneous costs associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Cressy & Everett, Inc. Realtors 

c/o Scott Hammontree 

332 N. Ironwood Dr. 

South Bend, IN 46615 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

From:  Cynthia Bonner, Principal 

 

Date:  December 6, 2017 

 

Re:  Donation Approval 

 

 

The National Flag Football has made a donation of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) to Pierre Moran Middle 

School Athletic Department for their use of the football field.  This donation will be used for athletic 

equipment and supplies.   

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 National Flag Football 
 Corporate Headquarters 
 2055 Franklin Road 
 Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302 
 
 
 
 



PETTY CASH $ 500.00                     

GENERAL ACCOUNTS:                      

     Lake City Bank 17,376,415.05          

     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                            -                           

     Teachers Credit Union                                                           2,917,517.49            

     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00               

SCHOOL LUNCH ACCOUNTS:
     Lake City Bank - Prepaid Lunch                                                   134,754.47               

     Change Fund            2,010.00                  

TEXTBOOK RENTAL ACCOUNTS:

     Chase Bank 1,591,231.73            

PAYROLL ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                        -                           

     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                                  67,480.44                

     

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                           

                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
November 2017

22,497,329.18$          

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  December 14, 2017 

TO:  Dr. Robert Haworth 

Board of School Trustees 

FROM:   Dr. Robert Woods 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Award 

 

Fuel bids for 2018 were opened on December 5, 2017 by Henry Lohmeyer, Tony Gianesi, and 

Robert Woods.  After reviewing the bids it is recommended that the 2018 fuel bid be awarded to 

Ceres Solutions, formerly known as North Central CO-OP.  Ceres Solutions/North Central CO-

OP provided fuel for Elkhart Community Schools in 2016 and 2017.  Transportation is extremely 

satisfied with the performance of the fuel and billings provided by Ceres Solutions/North Central 

CO-OP. 

Ceres Solutions/North Central CO-OP is the only vendor that provided a bid that meets the bid 

specifications of a 50 cetane rating without using additives.  Ceres Solutions/North Central CO-

Op is also the only vendor to purchase fuel from a single distributor and not multiple distributors 

as all of the others bidders do. 

The bid summary reflects fixed pricing available on the date of bids, December 5, 2017.  The 

Business Office respectfully requests permission to award a fixed price contract to Ceres 

Solutions/North Central CO-OP within the next 30 days at the best possible price available on a 

given day within this time frame. 

 

VENDOR 
FORM 

95 
ABOVE DOCK 

DIESEL 
ABOVE DOCK 

REGULAR 
FIXED DIESEL FIXED REGULAR 

CERES X 0.066 0.066 $2.07 1.9766 

50 cetane  50 cetane 50 cetane 50 cetane  

      

YODER OIL X No bid No bid $1.96 1.91814 

50 cetane  No bid No bid $0.01  

      

CRYSTAL FLASH X 0.0405 0.0392 $2.09 2.0558 

50 cetane  0.0700  $0.07  

      

PETROLEUM 
TRADERS 

X 0.0561 0.0561 $2.05 1.8864 

50 cetane    $0.07  

 







Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana  

 

 

RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS TO THE RAINY DAY FUND 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools 

established by resolution a Rainy Day Fund in December 2006 as set out in IC 36-

1-8-5.1; 

 

WHEREAS, the Rainy Day Fund currently has a fund balance of $7,038,183.77; 

 

WHEREAS, school funds including the General Fund and all funds supported 

primarily by property tax revenue have experienced funding reductions in the past, 

and are anticipated to be subject to such reductions in the foreseeable future; 

 

WHEREAS, it will likely be necessary to draw on Rainy Day Fund reserves to 

offset future funding reductions; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees approved a $2,000,000 appropriation 

for the 2018 budget in order to meet anticipated commitments; 

 

WHEREAS, the need exists to bolster Rainy Day Fund reserves; 

 

WHEREAS, it is forecasted funds may be available in the Capital Projects, 

Transportation Operating, and Referendum Operating Funds at the end of budget 

year 2017; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer is authorized 

to execute fund transfers in a cumulative amount not to exceed $2,500,000 from 

the funds listed above into the Rainy Day Fund not later than December 31, 2017, 

such funds being unused and unencumbered; 

 

FURTHERMORE, the Chief Financial Officer is directed to report the actual 

amount of transfers to the Board of School Trustees in January 2018. 

 

Passed and adopted this 19
th

 day of December, 2017. 
 

 

 

 

 



               AYE              NAY 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

        

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Secretary, Board of School Trustees 

            

 
2017 Rainy Day Fund Transfer Resolution 



Medical Plan Experience
November 2017

Cur Mo Cur Mo Pr Yr Chg YTD Cur YTD Pr Chg

UMR Medical 849,517$      859,032$      (9,515)$        9,399,958$     8,607,422$     792,536$        
UMR Rx 199,014$      210,071$      (11,057)$      1,701,469$     2,016,108$     (314,639)$       

Less Amt Above Stop Loss (82,639)$       (64,533)$       (18,106)$      (1,161,240)$   (654,568)$       (506,672)$       

   Total 965,892$      1,004,570$   (38,678)$      9,940,187$     9,968,962$     (28,775)$         

Expected 899,320$      980,682$      (81,362)$      10,193,997$   11,176,623$   (982,626)$       

Claims vs. Expected 66,572$        23,888$        (253,810)$      (1,207,661)$    

 

O:\Insurance\Board reporting ‐ Monthly Experience\Actual Experience Tracking







What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the name of 

the granting agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be used

to support the district vision, focus, and goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

Walmart 

Community 

Grant Program

Walmart and Walmart 

Foundation

West Side Middle 

School

Krista Hennings $1,000 Girls Basketball supplies, equipment 

and activies

The importance of these funds is crucial for the 

continuation of community and camaraderie that this 

sport instills in these girls.

Equipment and uniform updates and 

possible activities like attending an ND girls 

basketball game to help instill dedication of 

the sport. More skill development by using 

Tipping Point Academy located at the 

Elkhart Sports Center.

Page 1 of 1







 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  December 19, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of an agreement regarding retirement eligibility 

requirements. 

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2017-18 school year: 

 

Kimberly Meyer  Beardsley/Music 

 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Elyssa Kovatch  West Side/Special Education 

Began:  10/20/14  Resign:  12/21/17 

 

Teresa Kuruda   Roosevelt/Grade 6 

Began:  8/16/10   Resign:  12/21/17 

 

 

 
CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

Heather Holycross  Cleveland/Woodland/Food Service 

Began: 2/18/16    Resign: 12/29/17 

 

Carol Nusbaum  Riverview/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/5/17   Resign: 12/22/17 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

 

Robin Creer    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 10/16/17   PE: 12/11/17 

 

Kelly Martin Del Campo  Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 10/13/17   PE: 12/8/17 

 

Amber Smith    Beardsley/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/17/17   PE: 12/12/17 

 

      

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend an unpaid maternity leave of the following employee: 

 

Nakia Williams   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 11/29/17   End:  1/5/18 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session December 12 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting December 12 2017
	Gift Acceptance - ACCELL
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS 2
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - Memorial
	Gift Acceptance - Pierre Moran
	Balance Sheet  - November
	Recommendation for Award - Fuel Bid
	Recommendation for Award - Refuse Bid
	2017 Rainy Day Fund Transfer Resolution
	Insurance Update - November
	Fundraiser Requests
	2018-19 Calendar DRAFT
	Grants
	Conference Leaves
	Personnel Report

